
Planning and Zoning Commission Actions
Regular Meeting 

March 28, 2022

Call to Order Meeting was called to order at 6:02 pm by Chair Huggins

Invocation Commissioner Irving

Pledge of 
Allegiance

Commissioner Frank

Roll Call
Present: Yocum/ Huggins /Irving / Frank/Robertson
Phone in: Leffall / Sharpe

Call to the Public 1 Speaker Card

Michael Berry of Stanfield, Az. Expressed concern about the traffic. Specifically, the 
railroad access on Anderson Rd.  Stated that Arizona Law allows the train to block the road 
or access for up to 15 minutes. There needs to be traffic flow provision and hopes this is 
considered with future developments.

Minutes Commissioner Irving motioned to approve the minutes for January 10th 2022 and February 
14th . Commissioner Robertson seconded. All in favor. Passed unanimously.

Agenda Item 5.1:
5.1 

GPA 22-04 PUBLIC HEARING: PUBLIC HEARING: A request by the City of 
Maricopa for review and approval of a request to amend the General Plan Land 
Use Map for approximately 10.2 acres of land from Employment (E) to High 
Density Residential (HDR) generally located at the northwest corner of W. Garvey 
Avenue and N. Roosevelt Avenue. Discussion and Action.

Chair explained the city of Maricopa no longer owns the property and would like to table 
this item indefinitely. 
Commissioner Irving motioned to table item 5.1 and 5.2. Commissioner Frank seconded. 
All in favor. MOTION TABELED.
 

Agenda Item 5.2:
         5.2
ZON 22-01 PUBLIC HEARING: A request by the City of Maricopa for review and 
approval of a request
to rezone approximately 10.2 acres of land from Light Industrial (LI) to High Density
Residential (HDR) generally located at the northwest corner of W. Garvey Avenue and N.
Roosevelt Ave. Discussion and Action.

Chair explained the city of Maricopa no longer owns the property and would like to table 
this item indefinitely. 
Commissioner Irving motioned to table item 5.1 and 5.2. Commissioner Frank seconded. 
All in favor. MOTION TABELED.



Agenda Item 5.3:
5.3 

PUBLIC HEARING: A request by the City of Maricopa for review and approval of a request
to rezone approximately six (6) acres of land from General Rural (GR) to Planned Area
Development (PAD) generally located at the northwest corner of W. Garvey Avenue and
N. Wilson Avenue. Discussion and Action.

Rick Williams, Planning & Zoning Manager presented. Public hearing opened at 6:16 pm. 
Public Hearing closed at 6:16 pm.
Commissioner Robertson asked to clarify the fire water-or meeting the required fire flow. 
Will the incoming water supply will meet the requirement to flow both hydrants at the same 
time?
Rick explained that yes the city is in contact with both water districts working on a loop 
system so we can avoid problems.
Commissioner Yocum motioned to approve. Commissioner Sharpe seconded. All in favor. 
Passed unanimously.

 

Agenda Item 5.4:
5.4

TXT 21-03 (2) PUBLIC HEARING: A request by the City of Maricopa for review and 
approval of the City's first Multi-Family Residential Design Guidelines. Discussion and 
Action

Byron Easton, Senior Planner presented. Public hearing opened at 6:23pm. Closed public 
hearing at 6:23 pm. 
Commissioners were thankful and commended City staff for allowing plenty of time for 
public input and comments.
Robertson asked if parking was included in the guidelines? Byron clarified that parking is 
part of the city code. Zoning ordinances also cover structure and covered parking.
Frank suggested that the tree pallet be re-done and look at the ADWR guidelines when 
updating.
Irving appreciates the surveillance. Question on “ambiguous areas”. Byron clarified we 
want to keep areas well-lit and safety is the concern. Irving wants to make sure it does not 
appear that all areas are ambiguous and there is no surveillance and that all areas are 
covered which is the intent. Staff will reword and clarify item 5. 
Yocum expressed concern about parking. Wants to verify formula for spaces for guests, 
mechanics and plumbers. There is going to be more cars in these developments compared 
to a non-commuting town.
Chair Huggins wants to know if we can generalize a tree pallet or standalone document. 
City attorney Nick Cook clarified that she can give direction to staff to look into it.
Byron Easton said he will look into this request.
Leffall asked about the elevator or a reference for accessibility. Wants to make sure this is 
included when drafting for ADA purposes. Byron explained that this is high on the list and 
will be added there is current language and additional language that will be added prior to 
city council approval.
Commissioner Irving motioned to approve. Commissioner Yocum seconded. All in favor. 
Passed unanimously.

Agenda Item 5.5:
5.5

GPA 22-03 PUBLIC HEARING: A request by the City of Maricopa for review and approval 
of a request
to amend the General Plan Land Use Map for approximately 111.1 acres of land from
Low Density Residential (LDR) to Master Planned Community (MPC) generally located at
the northwest corner of W. Ruben Drive and N. Ensenada Road, approximately one
half-mile west of N. Anderson Road. Discussion and Action.
Alexander Bosworth, Assistant Planner presented.
Public hearing opened at 6:44pm
Speaker Card 1) Kristen Cardon 34745 W Teal Rd. Stanfield, AZ. Expressed concerned 
about the informing of the meeting boundary. This project is the same project and she does 
not feel that it is fair to not notify everyone originally included in the original plan. 
Speaker Card 2) Dave Klingensmith 34560 W Joe Blanca Rd. Stanfield, AZ. Expressed 
concern about the notification of the project. Not fair to not include him and the neighbors 
when this is the same project discussed prior.  Concerned about water. With the amount of 
homes coming water is very concerning. 
Public hearing closed at 6:48 pm.
Yocum asked city staff if the notification requirements have been met. Alexander answered, 



yes. Irving asked what is the major change to the plan now that it shows the 111 acres? 
Jason Sanks of Iplan Consulting, clarified these 111 acres was originally presented. This is a 
housekeeping item it has always been included but in fact a processing error now legally it 
included. Nothing has changed. Frank stated he was opposed before and is opposed to it 
now. Robertson explained he attended the neighborhood meeting and heard the complaints 
about being left off the mailing address. Asked if the board can be notified of neighborhood 
meetings going forward. 
Chair Huggins reiterated that nothing changed but if this situation happens again we would 
want to make sure the entire project is notified.
Commissioner Irving motioned to approve. Commissioner Yocum seconded. Frank 
opposed. Motion passes 6/1.

Agenda Item 6.0

Update from Staff

   6.0
Rick Williams, Planning & Zoning Manager gave the Commissioners a sample agenda and a 
city staff contact list. Staff is working with legal to bring a consent agenda to planning and 
zoning commission. 
This will be used for routine items very general in nature. To help move along and expedite 
a meeting. This is not to speed things up or circumvent the process. This is just for routine 
items. Routine items would be something like conditional use permit when adding antenna 
nothing major changing no site changes just adding antennas.
We want to make sure we have a clear line of communication with staff when were using 
the consent agenda items, please call staff if you have any questions at all. Items can be 
taken off and added to the regular agenda. City attorney Nick stated if there are any 
clarifications needed reach out to city staff.
Rick also stated they are working on updating the general plan.
Discussion ensued.

Agenda Item 7.0: 
Executive Session

There was no executive session.

Agenda Item 8.0: 
Adjournment

Commissioner Robertson motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:13 p.m. Commissioner 
Frank seconded the motion. All approved. The meeting was adjourned. 

I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge, that the foregoing Actions are a true and correct copy of the Actions of the 
regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission held on the 28th day of March 2022. I further certify that the 
meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present.

Dated this 29th day of March, 2022 


